SPORT, VENUE AND EVENT SPONSORSHIP RFP #2015-03
RESPONSES TO WRITTEN QUESTIONS

October 17, 2014
This list of questions and responses #1 (Q&A#1) is being issued to clarify certain information contained in the above named Request for Proposals (RFP).  The statements and interpretations of Contract requirements, which are stated in the following questions are not binding on the State, unless the State expressly amends the RFP.  Nothing in the State’s responses to these questions is to be construed as agreement to or acceptance by the State of any statement or interpretation on the part of the entity asking the question as to what the Contract does or does not require.  Some questions have been edited for brevity and clarity, and duplicate questions may have been combined or eliminated.

The following are questions submitted pursuant to the RFP and the State Lottery and Gaming Control Agency’s (“Lottery”) responses to those questions:
1. Question: Section 3.34.1 (page 34), Appendix N (page 164) is titled “Location of the Performance of Services Disclosure”. Please confirm the guidelines stated in Section 3.34.1 are actually in reference to Appendix L (page 159) titled “Living Wage Requirements for Service Contracts”. 

Answer: Yes, page 34 should read “Appendix L – Living Wage Requirements for Service Contracts”. (See Amendment #1 to RFP)
2. Question: Section 4.58 and Section 4.59 (pages 72 – 74), Please confirm that these pages are not to be returned with the Technical Proposal, and are to be completed only by the offeror who is awarded the contract at a later date. 

Answer: Correct, Section 4.58 and Section 4.59 will be completed only by the successful Offeror who is selected for contract award.  The Contractor will sign and submit these completed pages upon Contract award.
3. Question: Section 5.2.5 (page 83), Please provide further clarification as to the definition of “assistance in the implementation and activation of approved sponsorship proposals”. Specifically, what, if any, implementation and activation responsibilities will require the Contractor’s representatives to physically be present on-site.
Answer: The Lottery anticipates that the number of onsite implementation and activation responsibilities required of the Contractor will be minimal and be limited to meetings, reviewing marketing assets, signage, digital creative executions, etc.  

Implementation and activation of any sponsorship proposal is intended to mean the fulfillment of the contracts, ensuring that all elements included within the sponsorship agreement are delivered.  The Contractor may need to work side-by-side with the Lottery’s Creative and Digital agencies to ensure all assets are being used as intended.  
While some of the Lottery’s sponsorships include the ability for the Lottery to be onsite, the Lottery does not expect the Contractor’s staff to be onsite selling the Lottery’s products or staffing the Lottery’s booth.  However, if street teams are needed for a program, the Lottery may ask the Contractor to help secure the street teams.
4. Question: Section 7.2.2 (page 92), Please confirm that the six (6) additional paper copies, separate from the original copy, are to be bound.
Answer: Yes, the six (6) additional copies are to be bound.  The Offeror can choose to bind the copies or use a three-ring binder or other similar method to keep the proposals intact.
5. Question: Section 7.3.6.1, 5 (page 96), Please provide additional detail and 
clarification as to what is meant by “qualified to do business” and what level of detail is expected in regards to “the nature of any business done in that state or country”? For example, if the Offeror has a Contract with a client located in Minnesota, which includes on-site event activation responsibilities in California, is this considered, for the purposes of this question, as business done in California? 

Answer: Offer should explain the situation as clearly and concisely as possible.  The Lottery has the ability to request clarification, if needed, during the evaluation process.
6. Question:  Section 7.3.6.1, 7 (page 96), Please confirm if all full-time employees of the Offeror who are aiding in the effort to obtain the Contract should be listed. 

Answer: No, employees of the Offeror do not need not be listed.  The Offeror should list any outside entities that assisted in the development of the proposal, such as a lobbyist, lawyer, consultant, research firm, etc. 
7. Question: Section 7.3.6.1, 14 (page 96), Please clarify whether this refers to all professional affiliations held by the Offeror as a corporation, and/or professional affiliations held by individual employees of the Offeror? 

Answer: An Offeror may list the professional affiliations of the company as well as the affiliations of its employees.  
8. Question: Section 7.3.6.2, 4 (page 97), If an offeror has worked with the Lottery on a sole source small procurement or purchase order with no Contract name and/or number, should these agreements be listed along with their terms and amounts?

Answer: Yes, offerors shall provide the terms and amounts of all contracts with the State to include contracts that may not include a specific name and/or contract number. 
9. Question: Section 7.3.6.3, 3 (page 98), Please provide clarification as to how “unique services” is being defined for the purposes of this question.

Answer: This is an optional opportunity for an offeror to describe any services which it believes to be unique or different, differentiating or setting it apart from other offerors.  Examples of such services may include a team of graphic designers, broadcast production facilities onsite, etc.
10. Question: Section 7.3.6.4, 4 (page 99), Please define “Key personnel, and other personnel” as it relates to this prompt.  

Answer:  Key Personnel would be the Offeror’s employees who would be involved in the Lottery account on a regular basis, which could include attending meetings with the Lottery and sponsorship vendors and participating in the development and negotiation of sponsorship agreements. 
11. Question: Section 7.3.7 (page 99), Please confirm if the Lottery expects these Assignments to be submitted in writing prior to the oral presentations to the Technical Evaluation Committee, tentatively scheduled for November 5, 6, or 7, 2014.

Answer: Offeror’s may, if possible, submit their written assignments prior to the oral presentations but it is not required.  Written submissions may be distributed to the Evaluation Committee at the time of the oral presentation. 

12. Question: Section 7.3.8 (pages 100-101), Please confirm whether the responses for the prompts within these sections are due with the Financial Proposal or Technical Proposal on October 24, 2014.

Answer: Responses to Section 7.3.8 shall be provided as part of the Technical Proposal.  The Financial Proposal should only consist of a completed Appendix F.
13. Question: Section 7.3.10 (page 102), In regards to fulfilling the MBE requirement, please define “subcontractor” and “vendor” and highlight any key differences between them for the purposes of addressing this prompt.
Answer: As referenced on page 5 of the RFP, a Subcontractor would be an entity having a contract with the Contractor to perform all or some of the Contractor’s MBE requirement with the Lottery.  A vendor is generally a person or company that does work for the Contractor but is not bound by a long-term agreement.  
14.  Question: Section 7.3.11, 7 (pages 102-103), There is no Appendix O included in the Request for Proposal; however, Appendix M is titled “Authorization for Release of Information”.  Please confirm that this prompt refers to Appendix M.
Answer: Yes, page 103, Section 7.3.11, number 7 should read “Authorization for Release of Information (Appendix M)”. (See Amendment #1 to RFP)
15. Question:  Section 7.3.11, 8 (pages 102-103), There is no Appendix Q in the Request of Proposal; however, Appendix N is titled “Location of the Performance of Services Disclosure”.  Please confirm that this prompt refers to Appendix N.
Answer: Yes, page 103, Section 7.3.11, number 8 should read “Location of the Performance of Services Disclosure (Appendix N)”. (See Amendment #1 to RFP)
16. Question:  Appendix A, Section E (page 111), Please define “debarment”.
Answer: Debarment is a process whereby an entity is banned (“debarred”) from holding a contract or doing business with the government.
17. Question: We have a couple of female owned companies located in Maryland that we have partnered with in the past.  a) Do they need to be MBE certified to qualify?  b) Does that have to be before potential contract award, or can it be contingent upon award should that come to fruition?

Answer: As stated in RFP Section 3.21.1.3, “All MBE firms proposed must be certified by the Maryland Department of Transportation (“MDOT”) at the time of proposal submission in order to be counted.  Only MDOT Certified MBEs may be used to meet the MBE subcontracting goal.  
18. Question: Please clarify if the MBE subcontractor goal is 5% of the agency flat fee or 5% of the value of the contract/marketing budget?
Answer: It is 5% of the total value of the contract = agency fee + marketing budget.  As stated in RFP Section 3.21.2, “A minimum overall MBE subcontractor participation goal of 5% of the total contract dollar amount has been established for this Contract.”  

19. Question: Regarding “7.3.8.1a Financial Capability and Legal Action Summary: As a privately held company, we do not share or disclose our audited financial statements.  Is there another means by which we can prove our financial capacity?
Answer: The information stated in Section 7.3.8.1a is a requirement of the RFP.  A proposal submitted without this information should identify such Exception as outlined in Section 7.3.4 (3).  All Exceptions shall be removed or resolved during the evaluation process before a contract award can be made.
THE REST OF THIS PAGE WAS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

PAGE  
4

